# Draft – Protocol for Meetings of the Growth, Economic Development and Communities Cabinet Committee held under SI 2020 392

#### General

- 1. Part Three of the Constitution (Standing Orders) shall continue to apply for all virtual meetings except where there is a requirement, implied or otherwise, for Members to be physically present in the same location.
- These Protocols supplement but do not replace the Standing Orders in the Constitution and exist to make meetings held under SI 2020 392 more effective and efficient.
- 3. Reference to Chair or Clerk relate to the Chair or Clerk of the specific virtual meeting.
- 4. The Monitoring Officer or his deputies are available to assist and advise the Chair and the Clerk as necessary.
- 5. Members are respectfully reminded to ensure that the electronic device through which they are attending the virtual meeting has sufficient battery charge.

#### **Rules of Conduct**

- 6. The Chair's ruling on the meaning or application of these Protocols or any other aspect of the proceedings of a meeting held virtually cannot be challenged.
- 7. The Chair may give any direction, or vary these Protocols, when they consider it appropriate to do so in order to allow for the effective and democratic management of the meeting but must take advice from the Clerk before so doing.
- 8. Immediately before the commencement of the virtual meeting, all participants must switch the video and microphone settings to "off" and only turn them on when invited to speak by the Chair.
- 9. Members are reminded that any member of the public may observe the meeting.
- 10. The conversation function referred to in the Protocols is also known as the 'meeting chat'. Members should proceed as if the content can be viewed by participants and the wider public and only use the function for procedural matters as set out below. It should not be used to discuss the substantive issue this should be done verbally.

#### **Attendance**

- 11. Members must affirm their presence by typing the word 'Present' in the conversation function of the meeting. This shall be accepted by the Clerk as the equivalent of the Member having signed the attendance list.
- 12. Where a Member is leaving the meeting permanently or temporarily, the word 'Absent' shall be typed in the conversation function. Where the Member joins the meeting once more, 'Present' shall be typed once more.
- 13. Where a Member has declared a DPI or other interest which means they need to absent themselves for part of the meeting, the Member shall leave

- the meeting completely at the appropriate time. The Clerk shall email the Member when they are able to re-join. The Clerk will confirm the absence by checking the meeting attendees and confirming the same to the Chair.
- 14. The standard quorum of one third of the total voting membership applies and this number must have indicated they are 'Present' for the meeting to commence or continue. The Clerk will conduct electronic checks on quoracy periodically throughout the meeting.

#### **Substitutes**

15. In order to ensure that Members have access to the virtual meeting, it is requested that formal notification of substitutes to the Clerk be made at least 48 hours prior to the start of the meeting. The start time of the meeting will be affected if this is not done.

### **Speaking**

- 16. Members and other participants in the meeting must wait to be called on by the Chair before speaking.
- 17. Attendees may indicate a desire to speak through use of the conversation function. The Clerk will ensure these are brought to the attention of the Chair in the order received.
- 18. Members not part of the Committee wishing to speak shall request permission from the Chair in advance so that the Clerk is informed 24-hours ahead of the meeting.

#### **Motions and Amendments**

- 19. Except where the motion before the Committee is set out in the Agenda, any Member is entitled to request that a motion or amendment before the Committee be typed out in the conversation function by the proposer. Where this is done, the Clerk shall read out the motion/amendment.
- 20. All proposed motions/amendments will need to be seconded by a Committee Member present in line with usual practice.
- 21. The Chair shall ask for Members' views on the motion/amendment. Where the view of the Committee is unclear, the Chair shall call for a vote.

#### Voting

- 22. Voting will be through a rollcall of all Members taken in alphabetical order, or through a poll overseen by the Clerk through the conversation function, with the Clerk announcing whether the motion/amendment was agreed or not agreed once this has concluded. The Chair will announce at the start of the meeting which of these methods is to be used.
- 23. Where a poll is the chosen method but is not able to take place, the Chair shall ask Members to record whether they are for, against, or abstaining in the conversation function. No response shall be taken as an abstention.
- 24. No votes shall be recorded in the Minutes unless sections 16.31 or 16.32 of the Constitution apply.

### Clerking

25. There will normally be a minimum of two Officers supporting the Chair and Committee during a virtual meeting. One will act as a facilitator to support the Chair. The other will be taking minutes.

#### **Other Provisions**

26. Where the minimum legal requirements apply and Members are only able to hear each other and be heard, the Chair shall be responsible for identifying speakers etc., and will be supported in this by the Clerk as facilitator. A rollcall shall be held at the start of the meeting, and at other times as deemed necessary by the Chair, to establish quoracy in these circumstances.

## **Part Two Meetings**

- 27. At the start of any formal meeting, or part of any formal meeting, from which the press and public have been excluded in accordance with section 15.17 of the Constitution, Members shall type the words 'Present Alone' to verify that no unauthorised person is able to hear, see, or otherwise participate in the meeting.
- 28. A Part Two meeting will normally be anticipated and will be scheduled in advance as a separate virtual meeting. Where the need to move into a Part Two meeting only becomes apparent during the meeting, the item affected should be adjourned to a later date.